NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting: CABINET
Date and Time: WEDNESDAY, 7 MAY 2025, AT 10.00 AM
Place: COUNCIL CHAMBER - APPLETREE COURT, BEAULIEU

ROAD, LYNDHURST, S0O43 7PA

Enquiries to: Email: democratic@nfdc.gov.uk
Joe Tyler Tel: 023 8028 5982

PUBLIC INFORMATION:

This agenda can be viewed online (https://democracy.newforest.gov.uk). It can also
be made available on audio tape, in Braille and large print.

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting. The seating capacity of
our Council Chamber public gallery is limited under fire regulations to 22.

Members of the public can watch this meeting live, or the subsequent recording, on
the Council’s website. Live-streaming and recording of meetings is not a statutory
requirement and whilst every endeavour will be made to broadcast our meetings, this
cannot be guaranteed. Recordings remain available to view for a minimum of 12
months.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

Members of the public may speak in accordance with the Council's public
participation scheme:

(@) on items within the Cabinet’s terms of reference which are not on the public
agenda; and/or

(b) on individual items on the public agenda, when the Chairman calls that item.
Speeches may not exceed three minutes.

Anyone wishing to attend the meeting, or speak in accordance with the Council’s
public participation scheme, should contact the name and number shown above no
later than 12.00 noon on Thursday, 1 May 2025.

Kate Ryan
Chief Executive

Appletree Court, Lyndhurst, Hampshire. SO43 7PA
www.newforest.gov.uk



https://democracy.newforest.gov.uk/
https://democracy.newforest.gov.uk/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?GL=1&bcr=1
https://www.newforest.gov.uk/article/1191/Public-participation-at-meetings
https://www.newforest.gov.uk/article/1191/Public-participation-at-meetings

AGENDA

Apologies
LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

MINUTES

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 2 April 2025 as a correct record.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To note any declarations of interest made by members in connection with an
agenda item. The nature of the interest must also be specified.

Members are asked to discuss any possible interests with Democratic Services
prior to the meeting.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

To receive any public participation in accordance with the Council’s public
participation scheme.

RURAL ENGLAND PROSPERITY FUND ALLOCATION FOR 2025/26 (Pages 3 -
12)

To: Councillors Councillors
Jill Cleary (Chairman) Jeremy Heron
Steve Davies (Vice-Chairman) Dan Poole

Geoffrey Blunden Derek Tipp



Agenda Iltem 5

Cabinet - 7 May 2025

Rural England Prosperity Fund Allocation for 2025-2026

Purpose For Decision
Classification Public
Executive Summary This report seeks Cabinet approval for the

allocation of £162,005 from the Rural England
Prosperity Fund (REPF) for the financial year
2025-2026. The funds will be used to support
various projects aimed at enhancing rural
infrastructure, boosting local economies, and
improving community facilities within the
District.

Recommendation(s) | That Cabinet:

1. Approve the addition of £162,005 to
the Council’s Capital Programme for
2025/26, noting the spend is fully
financed through Government grant
(being the Rural England Prosperity
Fund);

2. Approve the proposed allocation of
£162,005 from the Rural England
Prosperity Fund for the financial year
2025-2026 towards the specific
projects set out in this report; and

3. Delegates authority for future
decision making associated with the
finalisation of the project
programme for 25/26 Rural England
Prosperity spend to the Strategic
Director for Place Operations and
Sustainability, in consultation with
the Portfolio Holder for Planning and

Economy.
Reasons for To support the objectives of the Corporate Plan
recommendation(s) by enhancing rural infrastructure and boosting

local economies.

To comply with the legislative requirements
related to the REPF.




To address the needs identified through
community consultations and stakeholder

engagements.
Ward(s) All
Portfolio Holder(s) Councillor Derek Tipp — Economy and Planning

Strategic Director(s) James Carpenter - Strategic Director for Place,

Operations and Sustainability

Officer Contact Tim Guymer

Assistant Director for Place Development
tim.guymer@nfdc.gov.uk
Jeannie Satchell

Economic Development Manager
jeannie.satchell@nfdc.gov.uk

Introduction and background

1.

The Rural England Prosperity Fund (REPF) was originally launched in
2022 alongside the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) with the
objective of supporting rural communities by funding projects that
enhance infrastructure, boost local economies, and improve
community facilities.

New Forest District was originally allocated £ 540,115 from the REPF
for the period 1 April 2023 - 31 March 2025. The governance and
mechanisms for the allocation of that funding was agreed at
meetings of Cabinet in March and July 2023. This money has now
been spent, with a separate report being prepared detailing the
outcomes of this funding and any lessons learnt.

In late March 2025, the Council were notified that a further £162,005
was allocated for the District for the financial year 2025-2026. This
report outlines the proposed allocation of these funds and seeks
Cabinet approval to proceed. This funding is in addition to the UKSPF
funding that was considered by Cabinet in April 2025.

Government priorities for how REPF must be spent

4,

The investment priorities associated with the REPF remain the same
as the previous allocations with a focus on supporting local business
and community and place. These priorities have been expanded



mailto:tim.guymer@nfdc.gov.uk
mailto:jeannie.satchell@nfdc.gov.uk

through the identification of linked themes and sub-themes which tie
into the key missions for Government. Figure One summarises this
approach, alongside emphasising a range of suitable interventions
identified by the Government that could be funded through REPF.

Figure One - Overview of Government investment priorities and relationship to
Rural England Prosperity Fund

Priority Theme Subtheme Intervention

Growing the local social economy and supporting innovation
Supporting

Local

Advice and

Support for support to

Business

Business business
- - Small scale investment in micro and small enterprises in rural areas

The development and promotion of the visitor economy
Development of

Thriving the visitor e L. X e
Places economy Existing cultural, historic and heritage institutions that make up the

- - local heritage offer

Local arts, cultural, heritage and creative activities

Investment in capacity building and infrastructure support for local
5 refvizs civil society and community groups
Bringing
communities
together,
tackling - - - - -
Healthy, Safe | homelessness. Impactful volunteering and social action projects to develop social
and Inclusive and human capital

Communities .
- . Investment and support for digital infrastructure for local
community facilities

Healthy: Creation of and improvements to local rural green spaces
Improve health
and wellbeing

. . Active travel enhancements in the local area

Kickstart Economic Break Down Barriers Build an NHS fit
Growth to Opportunity for the future

Communities

and Place Rural circular economy projects

5. The REPF differs from the UKSPF in several ways as follows: -

e Funding must only be spent on capital projects (e.g. lasting assets
such as buildings or equipment).

e Grants must not be spent on revenue costs (e.g. running costs or
promotional activities.

e REPF can only be spent in towns, villages and hamlets with
populations below ten thousand and the wider countryside, or
market or hub towns with populations of up to thirty thousand.

6. Crucially, and as with the UKSPF, the REPF must also be spent by
31st March 2026.



7. Whilst these factors are potentially limiting, officers propose to work
flexibly with key partners and other funding sources to maximise
delivery outcomes.

Recommended focus of REPF funding 2025-2026

8. Due to the very short timeframes provided by the Government only a
limited amount of engagement has taken place with key partners and
stakeholders including the New Forest National Park Authority,
informal discussions with Officers and Members internally within

NFDC.

9. Identifying a shortlist of projects for the 2025-2026 REPF programme
has also been informed through reviewing projects and outcomes
from the previous iteration of the REPF, taking forward aspects that
have been effective, whilst minimising risks and issues that have
complicated previous delivery.

10. Table One below identifies the proposed projects for the 2025-2026
REPF programme, including the indicative sum, description and
proposed delivery method.

Table One- Proposed projects for 2025-2026 REPF programme

Employment
Education or
Training
(NEET)

complement the UKSPF
revenue funding
allocated to the NEET
Support Programme. It
will allow the purchase

Project REPF Project Description Proposed Project
Name Allocation Delivery Method
(Indicative)

PEDALL £25k PEDALL supports The funding would be
individuals with administered by the
disabilities to enjoy New Forest National
outdoor activities Park.
through cycling in the
New Forest. The
funding allocation would
be used to improve the
site location and
equipment linked to
adapted bikes.

New Forest £20k A grant scheme The funding would be
Producer specifically for micro administered by the
Support and small local New Forest National
producers to assist Park.
them in developing and
growing their business.
Not in £10k The funding will NFDC Economic

Development team
and the commissioned
delivery partner of the
NEET Support
Programme will have




Project REPF Project Description Proposed Project
Name Allocation Delivery Method
(Indicative)

Support of equipment and oversight of the
Programme materials to assist in project.

the creation of NEET

run enterprises.
Community £50k A community grant NFDC Community
Grant scheme to support local | Team will administer
Scheme groups and the grant scheme.

organisations with

projects that require

capital investment.
Supporting £57k A business grant NFDC Economic
Local scheme to support Development team
Business businesses with will be responsible for
Grant projects that require the delivery of the
Scheme capital investment. project.

11. With regard to the two proposed grant schemes (Community and
Supporting Local Business) a similar approach will be taken as the
previous 2023-2025 programme. In essence, two separate funds will
be created to enable community groups and businesses to apply for
funds for small-scale capital projects.

12. Appendix 1 details the proposed thresholds, timeframes and, criteria
likely to be used in the allocation of the funds within the two grants
scheme. These will be finalised following Cabinet in consultation with
the portfolio holder in accordance with recommendation three.

Corporate Plan priorities

13. The REPF investment priorities of Supporting Local Businesses and
Communities and Place closely align with the Corporate Plan priorities
across Place, People and Prosperity. In seeking to implement the
recommended projects, officers will be mindful of ensuring that the

outcomes continue to align with these priorities.

Options appraisal

14. The recommended option is to allocate the £162,005 to the identified
projects set out in Table One above. This approach reflects input
from key partners, seeks to continue successful funding
arrangements utilised in the previous REPF allocations and ensures
an even distribution of funding across the investment priorities of
supporting local businesses and community and place.

15. The proposed model of delivery for the REPF seeks to share the
administration requirements across NFDC and external partners.




16.

17.

18.

This ensures the responsibility of monitoring and reporting is
distributed, reducing its burden on any one organisation.

Alternative options, such as allocating all the funding to business and
community capital grant schemes was considered but rejected
following consultation that evidenced specific need which fell outside
the scope of a traditional business and community capital grant
scheme. These projects (PEDALL and New Forest Producer Support)
are therefore identified as specific projects recommended for funding
at this stage.

A further alternative option would be to not approve the projects at
this time to allow further evaluation. Further consultation may reveal
alternative projects. The disadvantage to this option is that all
funding must be spent by 31st March 2026 leaving little time for
delivery. In addition, the projects recommended are based on
existing evidence and engagement, including learning from the
previous UKSPF and REPF funds. Therefore, additional analysis may
not add value.

Alternative delivery options for the 2025 - 2026 REPF programme
were considered including NFDC economic development team being
responsible for all projects. However, this was considered impractical
from a resource perspective and would impact negatively on the
ability to deliver maximum benefit to communities, residents and
businesses.

Consultation undertaken

19.

20.

With the very short notices provided by Government in announcing
this funding, the opportunity for extensive community engagement
has been limited. As part of the development of the previous
iteration of the REPF programme wider consultation was undertaken
and this has been incorporated into the development and design of
the 2025 - 2026 programme. Nevertheless, some consultation has
been possible with the New Forest National Park Authority and
representatives of community groups. The feedback received has
been incorporated into the proposed allocation.

Ongoing engagement with consultees and stakeholders as part of the
lifecycle of this programme will ensure outputs and outcomes meet
the needs of rural businesses and communities, whilst meeting
Governments investment priorities and the strategic priorities of the
Council’s Corporate Plan.



Financial and resource implications

21.

22.

The REPF is a Government awarded grant fund and therefore there
are no direct costs to the Council in allocating funds to individual
projects.

Unlike the UKSPF there is no allocation for administration of the
programme. However additional work because of the REPF will be
managed through existing resources within the Economic
Development team and through the proposed delivery partnership
arrangements set out above.

Legal implications

23.

Directly related to the content of this paper there are no legal
implications to consider. However, prior to finalising projects ready
for delivery, a number will need to be tested in line with the Subsidy
Control Act 2022 to ensure rules and regulations related to subsidy
control are not breached. Officers will also need to ensure
compliance with procurement rules and regulations.

Risk assessment

24.

25.

No formal risk assessment is required for this report. The funding of
projects will be subject to significant monitoring and reporting
throughout 2025 - 2026 which will ensure any risks arising are
identified, managed and mitigated at the earliest opportunity.

Whilst the day-to-day administration of two projects is proposed to

rest with the New Forest National Park Authority, NFDC Officers will
engage regularly with the National Park Authority to ensure delivery
outcomes are secured.

Environmental / Climate and nature implications

26.

Reducing the environmental impact of all projects will be considered
through the project design and procurement processes. Officers will
seek to reduce risk and maximise added-value opportunities
wherever possible.

Equalities implications

27. The proposed allocation is expected to have a positive impact on all

community members, ensuring equitable access to improved facilities
and services. Within this context particular attention is given to those
most vulnerable to remove barriers to participation both economically
and socially.



Crime and disorder implications

28. The proposed projects are expected to contribute to reducing crime
and disorder by improving community cohesion and providing better
facilities for youth and other vulnerable groups.

Data protection / Information governance / ICT implications

29. There are no significant data protection, information governance, or
ICT implications arising from the proposed allocation.

New Forest National Park / Cranborne Chase National Landscape
implications

30. There are no direct implications in this regard
Conclusion

31. The proposed allocation of £162,005 from the REPF for the financial
year 2025-2026 is expected to have a significant positive impact on
the District's rural communities. The projects identified for funding
align with the Corporate Plan priorities and address the needs
identified through community consultations.

Appendices: Background Papers:

Appendix 1 - Proposed thresholds, Rural England Prosperity

timeframes and criteria for the Fund Guidelines

community and business grant Corporate Plan 2025-2026

schemes e March 2023 Cabinet Report
o July 2023 Cabinet Report

10



Appendix 1

Proposed thresholds, timescales and criteria for community and
business grant schemes ((to be finalised in consultation with

Portfolio Holder)

Thresholds
e Minimum of £2,000 and maximum of £10,000
o Expectation of 10% match funding from application

Timescales
e w/c 2 June to w/c 30 June 2025 - window open for funding bids
e w/c 7 July - bids assessed
e w/c 14 July - funding awarded

Criteria
Projects must be:
1. located in New Forest District and within either:
a. towns, villages and hamlets with populations below ten
thousand and the wider countryside, or
b. market or hub towns with populations of up to thirty
thousand.
2. meet the themes, be comparable to the intervention list and
deliver against the outputs and outcomes of REPF; and
. support NFDC's corporate priorities; and
4. demonstrate evidence of liquidity (e.g. accounts showing healthy
reserves, and that organisation is sustainable); and either
5. For community grants demonstrate evidence of being a
community organisation (e.g. parish council, registered charity,
CIC, or other form of organisation; or
6. For local business grants demonstrate evidence of being a
business (e.g. listed on companies house or an equivalent).

(O8]

11



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Rural England Prosperity Fund allocation for 2025/26
	Appendix 1


